

H Y D R O P H O B I A

DIPLOMANIA Supplement --- NFFF Games Bureau Diplomacy Division --- Issue Number 7
Editor and Publisher: Don Miller --- 15 June 1969
This issue contains the following subzines and Variant Diplomacy games therein:

<u>DIPSOMANIA #26</u>	DKJ(1967Cai) (Su/F06) (pp 4,5)	<u>SUPERCAL'IOUS #26</u>
DBB(1966Dg) (A/W'09) (pg 2)	<u>FANTASIA #27</u>	SAA(1966Op) (F09) (pg 7)
DDD(1966Jl) (Su/F09) (pp 2,3)	FHD(1966Rr) (Su/F10) (pg 5)	SBB(1967Xav) (Su/F06)
DFE(1966No) (W09) (pg 3)	FIE(1966Ss) (W98) (pg 6)	(pg 8)
DHG(1966ABy) (S09) (pg 3)	FKF(1966Act) (H/C09) (pg 6)	SCC(1967Yaw) (A/W09) (9)
DIH(1967Aag) (Su/F07) (pp 3,4)	FMH(1969Ice) (pre) (pp 6,7)	SEE(1967AAay) (A/W04) (9.10)

The Players -- (includes all games in this issue) --

Alderson, Dan -- DIH,SEE -- 6720 Day St., Tujunga, Cal., 91042. (213-352-2153)
Birsan, Edi -- SAA -- 48-20 39th St., L.I. City, N.Y., 11104. (212-937-3187)
Bobker, Steven -- SEE -- 1009 87th St., N.Bergen, N.J., 07407. (201-869-4146)
Brannan, Dan -- DBB,DIH,SAA,SEE -- Apt.7, 915 S. St.Andrews Pl., L.A., Cal., 90019. (None)
Brooks, Rick -- DKJ,FIE,SCC -- P.O. Box 5465, Milwaukee, Wisc., 53211. (-)
Buchman, Ed -- DIH,SEE -- 446 Devon Wood Rd., Altadena, Cal., 91001. (213-794-0508)
Carey, Chuck -- FHD,FKF -- 2002 Westfield, Alexandria, Va., 22308. (780-2919)
Clark, Frank -- DBB,DHG -- 5506 Fiske Pl., Alexandria, Va., 22308. (FL4-9077)
Gemignani, Margaret -- DDD,DKJ,FIE,FMH,SBB,SCC -- 3200 N.E. 36th St., Ft. Lauderdale, Fla., 33308. (565-9940)

Harrison, Cole -- SCC,SEE -- Homat Imperial, Apt. #42, 3-28, 4-chome, Roppongi, Minato-ku, Tokyo, Japan. (All mail via airmail)

Hill, Roger -- SEE -- 1725 Orrington Ave., Apt. 421, Evanston, Ill., 60201. (491-0732)
Huff, Alan -- DBB,DDD,DFE,DHG,DKJ,FKF -- 7603 Wells Blvd., Adelphi, Md., 20783. (491-0732)
Johnson, Jared -- SAA -- 1548 Rochelle Dr., Chamblee, Ga., 30005. (404-457-8771)
Kanner, Larry -- DIH,SEE -- 10402 Scoville Ave., Sunland, Cal., 91040. (213-352-4309)
Kuch, Terry -- DBB,SAA; DHG(GGM) -- 4242 East-West Highway, Chevy Chase, Md., 20015. (301-OL6-5845; if calling long-distance, call person-to-person)
Lebling, Dave -- DKJ,FHD,SCC -- 3 Rollins Ct., Rockville, Md., 20852. (881-4718)
Linden, Bill -- DBB,DKJ,FMH,SAA,DDD -- 83-33 Austin St., Kew Gardens, N.Y., 11415. (212-441-2729)

McIntyre, Mike -- FIE -- 558 33rd St., Manhattan Beach, Cal., 90226. (FR4-9805)
Nebane, Banks -- DFE,FIE -- P.O. 938, Melbourne Beach, Fla., 32951. (305-723-1167)
McDaniel, David -- SEE -- 619 S. Hobart Blvd., Apt. #4, Los Angeles, Cal., 90005. (-)
Miller, Don -- DFE,FHD; GM -- 12315 Judson Rd., Wheaton, Md., 20906. (301-933-5417)
Naus, Hal -- SAA -- 1011 Barrett Ave., Chula Vista, Cal., 92010. (714-427-8726)
Nurse, Dave -- SEE -- 10256 Parr Ave., Sunland, Cal., 91040. (213-353-4391)
Pournelle, Jerry -- DIH,SEE -- 12051 Laurel Terr., Studio City, Cal., 91604. (Unlisted)
Prosnitz, Gene -- DHG,SBB -- 200 Clinton St., Brooklyn, N.Y., 11201. (212-855-0089)
Reiter, Dick -- DDD,FKF,FMH,SAA,SBB -- %Lt. Col. G.C. Reiter, Hq 2nd Wea Wing, CMR Box 166, APO N.Y., N.Y., 09332. (All mail via airmail)

Schelz, George, Jr. -- DDD,DFE,FIE,SBB,SCC,SEE -- 9 Buffington Pl., Bronxville, N.Y., 10708. (914-PE8-4318)

St. Cyr, Larry, Jr. -- DFE,DKJ,FHD,FMH,SBB,SEE -- 30 Frederick St., N. Adams, Mass., 01247. (413-663-6838)

Tretick, Buddy -- DDD,SBB -- 3702 Wendy Lane, Silver Spring, Md., 20906. (942-8306)

Von Metzke, Conrad -- SAA -- 3617 Columbia St., San Diego, Cal., 92103. (No phone)

Walker, Rod -- FKF -- Capt., 1575-A White Dr., Rantoul, Ill., 61866. (217-893-3642)

Welsh, Charles -- FMH -- 6917 Cherry Lane, Annandale, Va., 22003. (703-256-5683)

NOTE: Phone #'s needed for: Brooks, McDaniel.

Replacement Players -- DBB: St. Cyr; DDD: St. Cyr (FRA); DFE: None; DHG: St. Cyr; DIH: Castora, St. Cyr; DKJ: (Anyone) (GER), (Anyone) (TUR); FHD: Gemignani (APACHE); FIE: Key (MCINTYRE); St. Cyr (FRASER); FKF: Gemignani (MORDOR); St. Cyr (RHOVANION); FMH: None; SAA: None; SBB: (Anyone) (FRA); (Anyone) (GER); SCC: Reiter (ASSOC. INDEPENDENT TRADERS); St. Cyr (FIRST EMPIRE); SEE: Castora. Moves needed in thish
(Cont. pg. 10)

Issue #26 -- Postal Diplomacy Games DBB, DDD, DFF, DHG, DIH, DKJ - - - THIS is war???

DBB (Economic Diplomacy I) -- FRENCH GIFT PADS ITALIAN ECONOMIC LEAD, BUT RUSSIA MAINTAINS MILITARY ADVANTAGE!

AUTUMN, 1909 retreats -- ENG: F Bre (R) Gas (1); ITA (Brannan): A Gal (R) Sil (1); A Alb (R) Tri (1) (note that ENG is Huff).

WINTER, 1909 builds -- ITA: (B) A Ven (19); RUS (Kuch): (B) F StP(NC) (19).

Misc. W'09 Orders -- FRA (Linden): Send \$64 to ITALY (64).

Financial Situation at end of W'09 --

On hand at start of W'09*	270 pd	264 fr	462 li	230 ro	138 pi
Construction costs	-	-	-19	-19	-
Gifts	-	-64	64	-	-
On hand at end of W'09	270 pd	200 fr	507 li	211 ro	138 pi
Country	ENG	FRA	ITA	RUS	TUR

Positions at end of W'09 -- ENG: F's Gas, Lon (2); FRA: A's Bur, Par, Pic (3 -- 2 above supply center count); ITA: A's Tri, Tyo, Ven, Sil; F's Bre, Tun, Tyn, Ion, Adr, Lvp (10); RUS: A's War, Gal, Pie, Kie, Ruh, Mun; F's StP(NC), Nwg, NtS, NAT, EnC, Rum, Bel; A Boh (14); TUR (Clark): A's Bud, Ser, Vie; F's Aeg, WMe, Gre, Alb (7).

Deadline for SPRING, 1910 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

*Retreat costs already assessed.

DDD (Twin-Earths Diplomacy) -- AS SOUNDS OF WAR GROW LOUDER IN MOSCOW I & II, CZAR TAKES HOLIDAY ON OTHER SIDE OF WORLD!

The Players -- Buddy Tretick will replace Jim Boskey as RUSSIA eff. with AUTUMN 1909 season. Jim, is this temporary, or will you be out for good? ((See below.))

SUMMER, 1909 retreats -- FRA (Gemignani?): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A MunI, Retreating F TynII.

FALL, 1909 moves --

ENG (Schelz) -- A BelI (H); A BerI (S) F BalII-BerII; F BalII-BerII; A EdiII-BelII; F NtSII (C) A EdiII-BelII; A HolI-RuhI; A HolII (S) F KieII; F KieII (S) A BerI; F NtSI (H); F MidI (S) F MidII; F MidII (S) F MidI; F EnCII (S) F MidII; F SkaI-DenI; F KieII (S) F BalII-BerII; F EnCI (S) A BelI.

FRA (Gemignani?) -- A's PicI, BurI, GasI (U); F's PieII, MarII, HelI (U).

GER (Linden) -- A MunI-BerI; A BerII (S) A MunI-BerI; A MunII (S) A BerII.

ITA (Reiter) -- A VenI-PieI; A VenII-VenI; A NapII-RomII; A SpaI (S) F LyoI-MarI; F SpaII(SC) (S) F TunII-WMeII; F PorII (S) F Spa(SC)II; F TynII-LyoII; F TunII-WMeII; F TynI-WMeI; F LyoI-MarI; F IonI-ApuI.

RUS (Boskey; Tretick eff. A'09) -- A UkrI (H); A SweI-NwyI (no A SweI); F SweI (U); A SweII-NwyII; A MosI (S) A UkrI; A MosII (S) A MosI; A WarI (S) A UkrI; A WarII (S) A WarI (A WarII D (Pru, Sil, Lvn, o.b.)).

TUR (Huff) -- A BulI-RumI; A SerI (S) A BulI-RumI; A VieI (S) A TriI; A TriI (H); F AlbI-GreI; F AegI (H); A GalI-WarI; A SevI (H); F BlaI (S) A SevI; A ArmI (S) A SevI; A UkrII-WarII; A GalII (S) A UkrII-WarII; A SevII-MosII; A RumII-UkrII; A BulII-RumII; A VieII (S) A TriII; A TriII (H); F AlbII (H); F AegII (H); F BlaII (H); F ArmII-AnkII.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT'09 (retreat does not affect count) --

ENG -- StPII, NwyI, ~~NwyII~~, BelI, BelII, HolII, BerI, KieII, DenI, DenII, EdiI, EdiII, LvpI, LonI, LonII, KieI (stands pat). (15)

FRA -- BreI, BreII, MarII, ParI, ParII, ~~PorII~~, ~~SpaII~~, ~~NwyII~~ (remove one unit; 2 were destroyed SUMMER'09). (5)

GER -- HolI, BerII, ~~KieII~~, MunII, MunI (stands pat; only 3 on board, but no open home supply centers in which to build). (4)

ITA -- NapI, NapII, RomI, RomII, VenI, VenII, TunI, TunII, MarI, PorI, SpaI, LvpII, PorII, SpaII (may build three units; was 1 short last year).. (14)

RUS -- MosI, MosII, StPI, ~~StPII~~, WarI, ~~WarII~~, SweI, SweII, NwyII (stands pat; only 7 units currently on board). (7)

TUR -- AnkI, AnkII, ConI, ConII, SmyI, SmyII, BulI, BulII, GreI, GreII, RumI, RumII, SerI, SerII, BudI, BudII, Tril, TriII, VieI, VieII, SevII, SevI, WarII (*2).(23)

The Players (Cont. from above) -- Larry St. Cyr, please send standby replacement orders for Margaret Gemignani (FRANCE) for WINTER, 1909, in case she misses again.

DDD (Continued) --

Propaganda --

England -- France: Dear Margaret, I have not made any hostile moves towards any of your centers in a long time now; don't force me to break a record.

England -- Russia: I shouldn't be much longer now!

LondonI&II -- Rome: It is hoped that your westward expansion is about to cease, for our danger is not in the west!

Turkey -- Italy: What is Ionian I doing? I'd suggest making both Ionians neutral, or we're both liable to worry ourselves into dangerous situations.

--Sultan Allah Alhazred Hashish Ist

Deadline for AUT'09 retreat (RUS: A WarII) and W'09 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

DDF (Miller Nine-Man Game) -- GERMAN GOVERNMENT OVERTHROWN IN PROTEST AGAINST ANTI-AUSTRIAN POLICIES!

The Players -- Larry St. Cyr is now playing GERMANY in place of Jim Latimer.

WINTER, 1909 builds -- A-H (Mebane): (B) A Vie; (B) A Bud; GER (St. Cyr): (B) A Brm; IBERIA (Huff): (B) A Mad; (B) F Por.

Positions at end of W'09 -- A-H: A's Sal, Bud, Vie, Tyo, Boh, Brl, Gal, Pol, Mos, Ukr, Ode, Ven; F's Pie, Apu, Rom (15); GER: A's Mun, Bur, Swi, Brm, Ber, Pru, Sib; F's StP(SC), Rig, Bal, Bot, Bel (12); IBE: A's Mar, Bar, Mad, Par; F's Por, Svl(WC) (6); TUR (D.Miller): A's Tur, Cau, Con; F's Gre, Tun, Ion, Sar, Lyo, WMe, Gib, Mpr (11); UK (Schelz): F's Chr, NtS, EnC, Iri, Bre, Mid, Val; A Leo (8).

Propaganda --

North Sea -- The Tower of Strength of the South shall crumble beneath the cruel winds of the North! Death to the greedy meatballs!

Deadline for SPRING, 1910 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

DHG (Microdiplomacy) -- RUSSIANS TAKE MUNICH, DENMARK, SUE FOR PEACE!

SPRING, 1909 moves --

FRA (Clark) -- A Mun-Ber (A); C Ruh (S) CC Yor-Kie; T Hel (S) CC Yor-Kie; T Hol (S) CC Yor-Kie; TT NtS (C) TT Yor-Kie; TT Hel (C) TT Yor-Kie; CC Yor-Kie; TT Nwg (S) TT NtS; CC Pic-Bel; A Par-Bur; A Bur-Mun; A Tyo (S) A Bur-Mun; A Pie (S) A Tyo; A Ven (S) A Tyo; F Nap-Apu; F Ion (S) F Nap-Apu; F Tyn (S) F Ion; C Tun-Naf; TT WMe-Tun; TT Den-Ska; T Den-Bal; T Nwg-Nwy; T Bar-Nwy.

RUS (Prosnitz) -- CC Vie-Tyo; A Gal-Vie; A Bud (S) TUR A Tri; CC War-Pru; F Kie-Den; T Ska (S) F Kie-Den (spt. good, but T-Ska (A)); TT Swe (S) F Kie-Den; C Fin (S) TT Swe; A StP (S) F Nwy; C Fin (S) F Nwy; F Nwy (S) TT Swe (TT Spt. cut; T Spt. good); A Boh-Mun; A Sil (S) A Boh-Mun; A Ber (S) A Boh-Mun.

TUR (Huff) -- A Tri-Tyo; A Ser-Tri; A Alb (S) A Ser-Tri; F Gre (S) A Alb; TT Smy-Aeg; F EMe (S) TT Smy-Aeg; F Adr (S) A Ser-Tri; C Syr (H).

GGM Note -- Prosnitz has offered the other players a three-way tie. If the other players wish to agree to this, they may contact the GGM.

Propaganda --

France -- Britain --- oops, Turkey -- as the Famed Fumbler now calls himself: We did it before, and we can do it again, ohh-la-la.

Deadline for FALL, 1909 moves (no SUM retreats) -- Sat., July 5 (to GGM Kuch).

DIH (Economic Diplomacy II) -- ENGLISH GOVERNMENT THROWS IN TOWEL; KING TURNS TREASURY OVER TO TURKEY IN EXCHANGE FOR HAREM PRIVILEGES!

SUMMER, 1907 retreats -- ITA (Brannan): (E) Retreating A Smy (2); (E) Retreating A Arm (2).

FALL, 1907 moves --

A-H (Alderson) -- A Ven (H) (2); A Pie (S) A Ven (2); A Tyo (S) A Ven (2); F Tri-Alb (1); A Ser (S) F Tri-Alb (1); F Gre (S) F Tri-Alb (1); A Vie-Tri (1); A Bud-Tri (1); A Bul (H) (0); A Con-Ank (1); 30\$ to FRA F.T. (30); 30& to GER F.T. (30); 30\$ to RUS F.T. (30); 30\$ to TUR F.T. (30).

HPBA-7/4

DIH (Continued) --

ENG (Lebling) -- Send 18 pounds to TURKEY, F.T. (18).
 FRA (Pournelle) -- A Wal-Lon (1); F EnC (S) A Wal-Lon (1); F Mid-WMe (1); F Lvp-Nat (1); A Bur (H) (0); A Bel (H) (0); A Hol (H) (0); 30\$ to A-H F.T. (30).
 GER (Nurse) -- F Nts (H) (0); F Den-Hol (1); F Bal-Den (1); A Ruh (H) (0); 30\$ to A-H F.T. (30); 30\$ to RUS F.T. (30); 30\$ to TUR F.T. (30).
 ITA (Brannan) -- F Adr-Ven (2); A Apu (S) F Adr-Ven (2); A Rom (S) F Adr-Ven (2); F Ion-Aeg (1); F Tun-Ion (1).
 RUS (Kanner) -- F Bar-Nwg (1); A Nwy (H) (0); A Swe (H) (0); A Sil (H) (0); A Ukr (H) (0); A Kie (S) GER A Ruh (1); A Mun (S) GER A Ruh (1); A Sev-Rum (1); F Bla-Con (1); F Arm-Bla(1); 30\$ to A-H F.T. (30); 30\$ to GER F.T. (30); 30\$ to TUR F.T. (30).
 TUR (Buchman) -- A Smy (S) A-H A Con-Ank (1); 30\$ to A-H F.T. (30); 30\$ to GER F.T. (30); 30\$ to RUS F.T. (30).

Error in HPBA #6 -- On pg.4, chg. one of the two "A Bur (U)" to "A Edi (U)".

Supply Centers held at end of F'07 (no retreat) --

A-H -- Bul(20), Gre(20), Ser(20), Bud(20), Tri(20), Vie(22), Ven(17), ~~Abn~~, ~~Obn~~, Ank (20).
 ENG -- ~~Ybn~~.
 FRA -- Bre(20), Mar(20), Par(22), Por(20), Spa(20), Bel(20), Hol(18), Edi(20), Lvp(20), Lon(20).
 GER -- Ber(22), ~~Snp~~, Den(20).
 ITA -- Nap(20), Rom(22), Tun(20), ~~Snp~~.
 RUS -- Mos(20), StP(22), Sev(22), War(20), Nwy(20), Kie(20), Mun(20), ~~Ybn~~, Con(20), Rum(20), Swe(20).
 TUR -- ~~Ybn~~, Smy(12).

Units on Board at end of F'07 -- A-H: Home, 3; Foreign, 7; ENG: None; FRA: Home, 2; For., 6; GER: Home, 2; For., 2; ITA: Home, 3; For., 2; RUS: Home, 2; For., 8; TUR: Home, 1.

Financial Situation at end of AUT'07 --

Country	A-H	ENG	FRA	GER	ITA	RUS	TUR
O.H. at end of SUM'07	7170 cr	718 pd	7313 fr	7120 mk	737 li	7277 ro	7123 pi
Unsupported move costs	-4	-	-3	-2	-2	-4	-
Unused support costs	-2	-	-1	-	-	-2	-1
Battle Costs	-6	-	-	-	-6	-	-
Foreign Trade Out	-120	-18	-30	-90	-	-90	-90
Foreign Trade In	7120	-	730	790	-	790	7108
F.T. Bonus (1/3 In)	740	-	710	730	-	730	736
O.H. at end of F'07	7198 cr	0	7319 fr	7148 mk	729 li	7301 ro	7176 pi
Payoff: Own Capital	722	-	722	722	722	722	-
Other Sup.Ctrs.	7137	-	7178	720	740	7180	712
Maint. Costs: Own Terr.	-51	-	-34	-34	-51	-34	-17
For. Terr.	-126	-	-108	-36	-36	-144	-
O.H. at end of AUT'07	7180cr	0	7377fr	7120mk	74 li	7325ro	7171 pi

Deadline for W'07 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

DKJ (Lebling Variant) -- CZAR REPORTED KILLED IN TAKEOVER BY MILITARY! COUPS RUMORED IMMINENT IN GERMANY, TURKEY!

The Players -- Larry St. Cyr is playing RUSSIA in place of Jim Latimer. Anyone interested in playing GERMANY or TURKEY, in case Gemignani (GER) or Lebling (TUR) miss their SPRING'07 moves, please let GM know as soon as possible. Margaret and Dave, if you plan to continue playing, please let GM know by June 24.

SUMMER, 1906 retreat -- RUS (St. Cyr): A Mun (R) Tyo.

FALL, 1906 moves --

A-H (Linden) -- A Tri-Ser.
 ENG (Schelz) -- F Nat-Lvp.
 FRA (Brooks) -- F EnC-Nts; F Iri-Nat; F Edi (S) F EnC-Nts; F Spa(SC) (S) ENG F Nat-Mid (ENG F Nat NSO); F Mar (S) ITA A Pie (ITA A Pie OTM); A Bur (S) GER A Mun; A Lvp doesn't (S) RUS A Mos (i.e., A Lvp (U)).

DKJ (Continued) --

GER (Gemignani?) -- A Mun (U); A Ruh (U).

ITA (Huff) -- A Pie-Ven; F WMe (H); A Gre-Ser; F Ion (H); F Adr (S) A Pie-Ven.

RUS (St.Cyr) -- A Arm-Smy; A Bul-Gre; A Rum-Bul; A Vie (H); A Tyo-Mun; A Ber (S) F Den-Kie; A War-Sil; A Mos-Sev; A Lvn-Pru; A Nwy (H); A Sev-Rum; F Nwg-NtS; F Den-Kie; F Hel (S) F Den-Kie.

TUR (Lebling?) -- A Con (U); F Smy (U); F Ank (U).

Propaganda --

Edinburgh -- Trieste: What are you talking about? At least you have a supply center! And a bit of dry ground to stand upon. Good luck!

Supply Centers held at end of F'06 (no AUT retreats) --

- A-H -- Tri (stands pat). (1)
- ENG -- ~~Ed~~ (remove one unit). (0)
- FRA -- Bre, Mar, Par, Por, Spa, Lvp, Lon, Edi (may build one unit). (8)
- GER -- Bel, ~~W~~, Mun (stands pat). (2)
- ITA -- Gre, Nap, Rom, Ven, Tun (stands pat). (5)
- RUS -- Bul, Rum, Ser; Bud; Vie, Mos, StP, Sev, War, Nwy, Swe, Ber, ~~W~~, Den, Kie (stands pat). (14)
- TUR -- Ank, Con, Smy (stands pat). (3)
- NEUTRAL -- Hol. (1)

Deadline for W'06 build/removal -- Noon, Tues., June 24 (note that this deadline differs from the others in this 'zine; if you two (Brooks, Schelz) can get your orders in by the stated deadline, this game will go back to DIPLOPHOBIA, and we will save two weeks; thanks).

F A N T A S I A

Issue #27 -- Postal Diplomacy Games FHD, FIE, FKF, FMH - - - - - This is WAR???

FHD (Indianomacy II, #1) -- GREAT CHIEF BEER-BELLY DRINKS HIMSELF TO DEATH; NEW CHIEF TAKES OVER! APACHE CHIEF RUMORED SLAIN!

The Players -- Larry St. Cyr is playing the MUSKHOGEAN, in place of Al Huff. Anyone interested in playing the APACHE in case Lebling misses again, please send AUT'10 retreats to GM NLT July 8.

SUMMER, 1610 retreat -- MUSK (St.Cyr): W 67(Shawnee) (R) 66(Cherokee).

FALL, 1610 moves (to save space, we are using province #'s instead of names) --

APACHE (Lebling?) -- W95 (U) (D (101,98,o.b.)); W96 (U); W97 (U); W83 (U); W81 (U) (D (82,o.b.)); W76 (U); W74 (U) (A); W109 (U); W75 (U); W114 (U); W113 (U); W112 (U).

IROQUOIS (D.Miller) -- W116 (S) MUSK W115; W63 (H); W62 (H); W60 (H); W69 (H); W68 (S) W67; W67 (S) W73-74; W71 (S) W73-74; W73-74; W72 (S) W50; W78-73; W77-76; W50 (S) SHO W80 (SHO W80 OTM); W21 (H); W18 (H); W58-55.

MUSKHOGEAN (St.Cyr) -- W66 (S) W115; W115 (S) W66; W117-113.

SHOSHONI (Carey) -- W32-30; W25 (H); W80-81; W85 (S) W80-81; W84 (S) W80-81; W49-80; W29-49; W87-95; W92 (S) W87-95; W95 (S) W87-95; W88-87; W86 (S) W88-87; W89 (S) W88-87.

Supply Centers held at end of AUT'10 (retreats do not affect count) --

- APA -- 96, 97, 99, 83, 82, 108, 109, 110, ~~74~~, 113, 114, 101 (stands pat; one unit was dest. F'10). (11)
- IRO -- 10, 11, 12, 14, 61, 15, 69, 70, 71, 56, 50, 52, 54, 18, 21, 3, 74 (A1).(17)
- MUSK -- 115, 66, 64 (stands pat). (3)
- SHO -- 87, 49, 26, 27, 28, 36, 29, 44, 45, 47, 38, 88, 80 (stands pat). (13)

Propaganda --

Broken Land -- The Council of 50 send their condolences to the MUSKHOGEAN people over the loss of their beloved Great Chief Beer-Belly. May his spirit never be thirsty again! ~~###~~ The Council offers the hand of friendship to the new MUSKHOGEAN Chief. All hail the Iroquois Confederacy and their brothers, the MUSKHOGEAN and the SHOSHONI! Death to the enemies of the Ongwanosionni! Long live Great Chief Haienthwatha! Hai! Hai! Hai! Hai! Aiiiiiiyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyyy!!!!

Deadline for AUT'10 retreats (APA: W's 95,81) and W'10 build -- Noon, Tues, July 8

FIE (Game of the Clans) -- THE MACLEOD OF MACLEOD REPORTEDLY FLED TO THE RIVIERA
WITH THE FRASER QUEEN!

The Players -- Jeff Key, please send stand-by replacement moves for MCINTYRE (Michael McIntyre) for SPRING, 1499, in case he misses again; Larry St. Cyr, please send stand-by replacement moves for S'99 for FRASERS (Gemignani), in case....

WINTER, 1498 Builds -- FRASERS (Gemignani?): NMR; stands pat; KEITHS (Schelz): (B) A Wick Castle(3); MACLEOD (McIntyre?): NMR; stands pat; ENGLAND (Mebane): (B) A Cumberland(89); (B) A Northumberland(90); (B) F South Channel(e); (B) F Blyth Bay(gg).

Positions at end of W'98 -- FRA: A's 33, 34, 32, 26, 25, 39 (6 -- 1 short next year); KEI: A's 2, 3, 5, 18, 19, 17, 24 (7 -- 1 short next year); MCL: A's 6, 7, 10, 14, 31; A/BB 44(EC); BB 7 (6 -- 1 short next year); STEWART (Brooks): A's 78, 77, 82, 83, 67, 65, 63, 53, 52, 50, 49, 54, 55, 48, 42, 43, 47, 57, 58, 62, 59, 87; A/BB's f, n; BB 47 (24); ENG: A's 89, 90, 74, 71, 70, 73, i, bb, 36, 22, 29, 15, 4; F's aa, bb, gg, i, c, o, s, t, u, v, 9, 16, 21, aa, 37, 40; A/BB's m, 46 (31).

Deadline for SPRING, 1499 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

FKF (Middle-Earth Diplomacy IV, #2) -- SAURON, KING OF RHOVANION DISAPPEAR AS THEIR
KINGDOMS TOTTER UNDER HARADRIM ONSLAUGHT!

The Players -- Margaret Gemignani, please send stand-by replacement player moves for Alan Huff (MORDOR) for TUILE, TA 1910, in case he misses again; Larry St. Cyr, please send stand-by replacement moves for Dick Reiter (RHOVANION), in case....

HRIVE, TA 1909 retreats -- MORDOR (Huff?): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A Rhun; RHOVANION (Reiter): NMR; GM (E) Retreating A's Fangorn and Rhudaur.

COIRE, TA 1909 builds -- ARNOR (Carey): (B) A Cardolan; HARAD (Walker): (B) A Far Harad; (B) A Umbar; RHOVANION (Reiter?): NMR; stands pat.

Positions at end of COIRE, TA 1909 -- ARN: A's Frd, Gun, Ett, Rhd, Iml, Gla, Crd (7); HAR: A's Far, Umb, Nea, Hrd, Eph, Nur, Udu, Ith, Ano, Fan, Lor, Mor (12 -- 1 short next year); MOR: A's Emy, Gor (2); RHO: A's Rhn, Wil, Mir, Nom, DoG, CaD (6 -- 1 short next year).

Propaganda --

Umbar -- From the Imperial Palace, far into the night, a shrill voice may be heard: "Thirteen plus two is fifteen, heh, heh, hehehe, cackle, shriek! Thirteen plus two is fifteen, croak, croak, cackle. Thirteen plus two are fifteen? Is fifteen? Fifteen, chortle, chortle, cackle, cackle, cackle, cackle...."

Umbar -- Excuses, excuses. Nothing, Don Miller, can ever convince me otherwise than that you designed this game and deliberately gave Harad a cramped position and deliberately gave it to me so that I would be utterly frustrated. If you are not careful, I will order my A Far Harad to Wheaton through hyperspace and they will capture you and bring you here and I will throw you into Mt. Oroduin unless you think of some way out of here that (a) is not frustrating and (b) does not violate my treaty with Arnor. P.S. -- if you think I clobbered Mordor and Rhovanion this time, just you wait!

GM (the true master of the One Ring -- at least in FKF) -- The ruler of Harad had better hold his tongue before we sic our invisible Ring-wearing army on him! Anyway, all Middle-Earth knows how much the King of the Haradrim is enjoying himself as he gobbles up all those supply centers -- so greedily that he conquers more centers than he has armories in which to build new armies.... Tut, tut, tut....

Deadline for TUILE, TA 1910 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

FMH (Mordor-Versus-the-World IV) -- WAR CLOUDS GATHER OVER MIDDLE-EARTH ONCE AGAIN
AS SAURON FLEXES HIS MUSCLES, GOES AFTER RING!

The Players -- See next page; all fees are paid, and roster is now full.

The Rules and Board -- Separate rules and map are attached to this issue of HPBA for all FMH players; others may read rules and see map in DIPLOMANIA #24 (or may obtain a set from us for 25¢). DIPLOMANIA is 35¢, 4/\$1.25 (30¢, 4/\$1.10 to G.B. Regular members), so if you want the rules/map, you'd be better off getting DPMA.

FMH (Continued) --

MORDOR-VERSUS-THE-WORLD IV (FANTASIA Game FMH)The Players --

ARNOR -- Bill Linden, 83-33 Austin St., Kew Gardens, N.Y., 11415. (212-441-2729)

GONDOR -- Margaret Gemignani, 3200 N.E. 36th St., Ft. Lauderdale, Fla., 33308.
(-565-9940).MORDOR -- Dick Reiter, %Lt. Col. G.C. Reiter, Hq 2nd Wea. Wing, CMR Box 166, APO
NY, NY, 09332. (All mail via airmail.)

RHOVANION -- Charles Welsh, 6917 Cherry Lane, Annandale, Va., 22003. (703-256-5683)

ROHAN -- Larry St. Cyr, Jr., 30 Frederick St., N.Adams, Mass., 01247. (413-663-6838)

Deadline for COIRE, 3000 builds, etc. -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

S U P E R C A L I F R A G I L I S T I C E X P I A L I D O C I O U SIssue #26 -- Postal Diplomacy Games SAA,SBB,SCC,SEE - Curiouser and Curiouser....SAA (Game of Anarchy I) -- TOE HITS PAP; PAP HITS RUS; RUS HITS EDI; EDI DEVAS-
TATES TFR IN CLASSIC DOUBLE-CROSS! SULTAN OVERTHROWN!The Players -- Dick Reiter now plays THE OTTOMAN EMPIRE in place of Jim
Latimer.FALL, 1909 moves --

BREST (Linden) -- A Spa-Gas; F Mar-Lyo; F Mid-WMe.

ELECTORATE OF BULGARIA & UPPER SWEETWATER CANYON (Von Metzke) -- F Bre (H).

ELECTORIAL DISTRICT OF IDE (Birsan) -- F NtS-Hol, A Wal-Bel; F EnC (C) A Wal-Bel;
F Nwy (H); F Bal-Kie; A Swe-Den; A Mos-War (D (StP, Sev, o.b.)).PAPAL STATES (Kuch) -- A Tyo-Vie; A Tri (S) A Tyo-Vie; F Alb (S) F Tyn-Ion; F Tyn-
Ion; A Ven (S) A Tri.PARIS (Braman) -- A Par-Bre.RUSSIA (J.Johnson) -- A Pru-Lvn; A War (S) A Ukr-Mos; A Gal-Ukr; A Vie-Gal; A Bud-Vie.THE OTTOMAN EMPIRE (Reiter) -- A Ser-Alb; A Bul-Gre; F Gre-Ion; F Ion-Nap; F Con-
Aeg; F Smy-EMe.THE FOURTH REICH (Naus) -- A Pic (S) A Ruh-Bur; A Ruh-Bur; A Mun-Sil; A Ber (S) A
Mun-Sil; A Kie-Mun.Supply Centers held at end of AUT'09 (retreat may affect count) --

BRE -- Mar, Por, Spa (stands pat). (3)

BUS -- Bre (stands pat). (1)

EDI -- StP, Nwy, Swe, Den, Edi, Lvp, Lon, Bel, Hol, Kie, (Sev) (may build
three units, regardless of whether or not A Mos (R) Sev, as only has 3
supply centers in which to build). (10 or 11)PAP -- Tri, ~~Ab~~, Rom, Ven, Tun, Vie (stands pat). (5)

PAR -- Par (stands pat). (1)

RUS -- Rum, Bud, ~~Vie~~, Mos, (Sev), War (remove one unit, unless EDI A Mos (R)
Sev, in which case must remove two units). (5 or 4)

TOE -- Ank, Con, Smy, Bul, Gre, Ser, Nap (must build one unit). (7)

TFR -- ~~Bel~~, ~~Ab~~, Ber, ~~Kie~~, Mun (remove three units). (2)Propaganda -- Rome: Oy Vey!Avignon -- Duke Arthur has decided to collect the tribute due him from Rome. "It
is a matter of record that Rome was beaten into the ground several times by Our an-
cestors. First by Beli. Then by Constantine. Then by Arthur the Great. Rome must
re-acknowledge Our supremacy, or be destroyed."London -- I hope that you aren't still at the helm of the 4th Reich, Hal; I only
attacked you because I can't afford to have anyone in Germany that isn't allied to
me. If you are still in the game we should be able to rearrange things as they
were before. ((Un huh...All the King's horses, and all the King's men... --GM))Sweetwater Canyon -- Dammit, isn't anybody going to make an offer? First bidder
can use my fleet any way they wish. Hurry; don't let all my glorious press releases
go to waste.Deadline for A'09 retreat (EDI: A Mos) and W'09 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues, Jul. 8.

SBB (Hyperspace II, #1) -- NEW TZAR TAKES HELM OF RUSSIA! GOVERNMENTS OF FRANCE, GERMANY REPORTED NEAR COLLAPSE!

The Players -- Larry St. Cyr is now at the helm of RUSSIA. Anyone not in game already is invited to send in stand-by replacement moves for FRANCE (Gemignani) and GERMANY (Reiter), in case they miss their moves again. Only a statement of interest is required for FRANCE, but a WINTER'06 removal is needed for GERMANY.

SUMMER, 1906 retreat: ITA (Schelz): F Nap (R) Apu.

FALL, 1906 moves --

A-H (Prosnitz) -- A Vic-Tyo; A Ven-Rom; A Bud (S) thru hs, A Ven-Rom; A Tri (S) ITA
F Mar-Ven (thru hs) (ITA F Mar NSO); A Lon-Wal; A Gal-Lon, thru hs; A Sev-Con,
thru hs; A Con-Bur, thru hs; A Gre (H); (L) Bud(65) & Lvp(22); (S) Edi(20) & Lvp(22).

ENG (Tretick) -- A Nap-Rom; F Tyn (S) A Nap-Rom; A Edi-Yor; A Mun-Bur; A Sil-Mun;
F Nwy-StP(NC); F Don-Kie; A Ber (S) F Den-Kie; F Spa(SC) (S) FRA A Pie-Mar (FRA
A Pie NSO); (L) Ber(42) & Por(28); (S) Lon(24) & Gal(64).

FRA (Gemignani?) -- A Bre (U); A Pie (U).

GER (Reiter?) -- A Bel (U); A Ruh (U).

ITA (Schelz) -- F Por (S) A-H F Lon via hs (A-H F Lon OTM); F Apu-Ven; A Mar (S) via
hs F Apu-Ven (no A Mar); F Mar (U); (L) Gre(60) & Lon(24); (S) Ven(71) & Pie(70).

RUS (St. Cyr) -- A War-Bel thru hs (not linked); A Kie-Hol; F Bal-Ber; A StP-Nwy;
A Mos-War; A Smy-Con; (L) Bre(34) & Kie(43); (S) Bel(36) & Hol(37).

Supply Centers held at end of F'06 (no AUT retreats) --

A-H -- Con, Bul, Gre, Rum, Ser, Bud, Tri, Vie, Sev, Ven, Lon (may build one
unit; was one short last year, but only has one open s.ctr. in which to bld.) (11)

ENG -- Nwy, Rom, ~~Pol~~, Spa, Ber, Den, Edi, Lvp, ~~Lph~~, Nap, Kie, Mun (~~1~~ unit). (10)

FRA -- Bre, Par, ~~Wyl~~ (stands pat; one unit dest. S'06). (2)

GER -- Bel, ~~Wyl~~ (remove one unit). (1)

ITA -- ~~Wyl~~, Tun, Mar, For (stands pat). (3)

RUS -- Ank, Smy, Mos, StP, War, Swe, ~~Wyl~~, Hol (stands pat; was 2 short last
year, but has no open home supply centers in which to build). (7)

Propaganda --

London, 4 Apr 06 -- The Ministry is alarmed at the vendetta displayed by the GM -- not allowing the Austrian support which was obviously "via hs". We of the dippy-world can not excuse influence of the game by the GM -- the players must be the total influence. ##### Our "GM" is playing "hyperspace" in LA GUERRE, using abbreviations published under those house-rules. He knows that "NOR" is for Norway, "NSE" is for North Sea, "NWG" is for Norwegian, "NAT" is for North Atlantic, etc. The Austrian player in SBB never writes "via HS", but the GM of LA GUERRE always allows the move. Note that the GM of LA GUERRE many times called up the GM of SBB to tell him the deadline has long since passed (the moves were always accepted late). We invite the GM of SBB to come off it -- or drop the magazine...one or the other!!

GM -- 1. How LA GUERRE is run has no bearing whatsoever on how we run our 'zines. If the LA GUERRE GM wishes to accept late moves, that's his business. Some 'zines do -- and some don't.... ##### 2. The DIPLOMANIA "House-Rules" expressly state that all moves should be fully written out; the list of abbreviations we publish is to let the players know what we are using in our 'zine -- the least players who ignore the "fully written out" House-Rule could do is to use the abbreviations we indicate.... But that would be too much to expect -- at any rate, "NOR" is not an acceptable abbreviation (and neither is "NWG") for DIPLOMANIA-family games. ##### 3. The rules for SBB expressly state that "via hs" must be a part of all orders involving moves thru hyperspace, or said moves would be interpreted as thru normal space, and would fail if not possible thru normal space. Moves which do not follow the rules fail!

4. Note that ITALY was hurt this time by the failure of a move because he ordered an "A" when he had an "F" instead. An integral part of the DIPLOMANIA games-mastering philosophy has always been (and has been so stated many times) that the correct and unambiguous writing of orders is an essential feature of the game -- and that units which do not receive correctly-written orders can not be expected to perform as the writer of the orders intended. Correct orders produce correct results; incorrect orders produce a mess. Take heed, people, and take care in order-writing!

Deadline for W'06 builds/removals -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

SCC (Foundation Game) -- RULERS OF FIRST EMPIRE, ASSOCIATION OF INDEPENDENT TRADERS
REPORTED TRYSTING IN SECRET HIDEAWAY; REPLACEMENT RUMORED!

The Players -- Dick Reiter, please send stand-by replacement moves for ASSOC. INDEPENDENT TRADERS (Gemignani) for S'06; Larry St. Cyr, please do the same for FIRST EMPIRE (Lebling).

AUTUMN, 8005 retreats -- FEMP (Lebling?): NMR; GM (E) Retreating FFF Filia(25); COLONIES' EMPIRE (Harrison): FF Trantor(13) (R) Rigel(14); FF Trantor(13) (R) Vega (16); FIRST FOUNDATION (Schelz): FFF Terminus(60) (R) Anacreon(59).

WINTER, 8005 builds/removals -- FEMP: NMR; stands pat; COLE: (B) F Helicon(19); (B) F Glyptal(22); (B) F Synnax(23); UNION OF WORLDS (MULE) (Brooks): (B) F Santanni (29); (B) F Kalgen(31); (B) F Siwenna(32); (B) F Horlegger(34); AIT: NMR; stands pat; FFOU: (E) F Smyrno(57); (E) FF Anacreon(59).

Positions at end of W'05 -- FEMP: F's 10, 13; 3F 21; 4F 15 (9 -- 3 short next year); COLE: F's 1, 7, 17, 22, 24; 2F 14, 16; 3F 23; 4F 19 (16 -- 2 short next yr.); MULE: F's 25, 53, 58; 2F 29, 31, 32, 34; 6F 26 (17 -- 1 short next year); AIT: F's 36, 38, 39, 44, 46, 51; 2F 50, 52, 60; 5F 55 (17 -- 2 short next year); FFOU: 2F 57, 59 (4).

Error in HPBA #6 -- Underline FEMP "LINK" orders "(L) 19-1" and "(L) 15-1"; these are illegal, as "Links" may not be made to a supply sector with a supply capability of three, and 1(Tazenda) is such a three-rated sector.

Propaganda --

First Foundation -- Union of Worlds: Do you like to come in second all the time? You're doing a good job of it here; when I go, the game's over, and you certainly won't win!

Steffani -- The whole planet seems to shake with the rumble of distant thunder. The deep drives of thousands of ships are put into operation at once, and with a crash of lightning visible everywhere, the Imperial Fleet departs for Trantor. Emperor Lebling Mis has sent the numberless forces of the Galactic Empire to drive out the barbarians from the greatest city, greatest planet of His realm. ##### Ten thousand war globes, massing hundreds of millions of tons, each carrying its complement of Imperial troops: dark and swarty men of Delicass; old Bolshies from Terra herself, tough as tool steel; Anzacs from Norstrillia; crack guards from Ford II and III. The armed might of the Empire is descending on Trantor. In addition to the war globes, thousands of Genmotor walkers and spaceforms, each with its Filian symbiote-pilot. ##### All over the Empire, the loyalist forces are massing for the counter-blow against the forces of Colem. Even as the great Armada rose shrieking into the sky of Steffani, the entire Hub was ablaze with the light from Imperial phasors. On a vast front of billions of cube-lights, the Colems are being harried, weakened, and in the end defeated. ((This was intended for publication in HPBA #6, with the FALL '05 moves in which FIRST EMPIRE retook Trantor from COLONIES' EMPIRE, but was deferred to #7 for lack of space in #6; another piece of FEMP propaganda, datelined "Helicon", is again deferred, this time to HPBA #8. --GM))

GM Note -- To answer a question, 19 was not open to possible retreat by the dislodged COLE Units from 13, as 19 was contested during the FALL'05 campaign.

Deadline for SPRING, 8006 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

SEE (Anarchy III) -- SIC AND ASDP ROLL OVER REST OF EUROPE AS FOURTH YEAR OF CONFLICT COMES TO AN END!

AUTUMN, 1904 retreats -- HOL/RUM (Reiter): NMR; GM (E) Retreating FF Hol; MUN/POR (Gemignani): NMR; GM (E) Retreating F Por; NAP/STP (Harrison): F Lyo (R) Spa(SC).

WINTER, 1904 builds/removals -- AUSTRIA (Alderson): (B) 3A Vie; BER/SMY (Pournelle): Declares Ank, Con, Smy home supply centers, renames nation The Sublime Converted Kingdom of Jerusalem and Constantinople (to be abbrev. as TURKEY); (B) 3F Con; (B) 3F Smy; HOL/RUM: NMR; GM (E) F Hel; MUN/POR: NMR; GM (E) F Mid; NAP/STP: (B) 2F Spa(SC); (B) F Nap; NWY/VEN (Buchman): (B) 3F Nwy; PAR-SEV (Nurse): (B) 2F Bro; (B) A Mos; SER/SPA (Brannan): (E) F WMe; (E) A Ukr; (E) A Sev; TUN/WAR (McDaniel): (B) 2F Tun; (B) A Ber.

W'04 Alliance orders -- AUSTRIA: Ally with TURKEY; DEN/MAR: Ally with NWY/VEN;

HPBA-7/10

SEE (Continued) --

LON/VIE (Kanner): Ally with PAR/SEV; NWY/VEN: Ally with DEN/MAR; PAR/SEV: Ally with LON/VIE; TURKEY: Ally with AUSTRIA.

GM Note -- With space still tight, we have decided to run the ASDP Press Release sent in for Spring, 1904 on the U.S. Presidential election in DIPLOMANIA #24.

Positions at end of W'04 -- AUSTRIA: AAA Vie, AAA Bud, AAA Tri, AAA Rum, A Mun, A Sil, AAA Pic, FFF Gre (20 -- 1 short next year); BEL/GRE (St. Cyr): FF EnC; F Lon (3); BUL/LVP (Bobker): AAF Lvp (3); DEN/MAR (Hill): AAF Por, FFF Lyo, FFF Bel (9); EDI/MOS (Schelz): A Edi, FF Cly (3); HOL/RUM: None; OOG; LON/VIE: AAF Ven; A Ruh; AA Hol (6); MUN/POR: None; OOG; NAP/STP: AAF Rom; FF Apu, F Nap, FFF Spa(SC) (9); NWY/VEN: FFF Nwy, FF Nwg, FF NAT, FF Swg, FF NtS, F Den (12); PAR/SEV: AAA War, A Mos, AAA Pic, AFF Bro, AA Gas (12); SER/SPA (Brannan): A Ukr, A Sev, A Gal (3); TUN/WAR: AFF Tun, F Ion, AA Ber (6); TURKEY: FFF Con, FFF Smy, FFF Tyn, FF Bul(SC), A Ank, AAF Kie (15).

Alliances in effect at end of W'04 -- TUN/WAR & NAP/STP; PAR/SEV & LON/VIE; NWY/VEN & DEN/MAR; TURKEY & AUSTRIA.

Deadline for SPRING, 1905 moves -- Noon, Tues., July 8.

Replacement Players (Continued) --

for those players whose names are underlined above, for the country indicated. More stand-by replacement players are urgently needed for all games. S-B Repl. Player Rules: Make moves when asked to do so; one miss, & you're off the roster for that game; two misses, and you're off the entire R.P. roster. Repl. moves are automatically asked for when a player misses a move; if he misses a 2nd consecutive time, the R.P.'s moves are used and the R.P. enters the game in place of the player for whom he submitted moves. ##### Only requirement to be a R.Player is that you are already receiving the magazine (as a player, subscriber, or trader); there is no fee.

The Gamesmasters -- For all games but DHG, Don Miller, 12315 Judson Rd., Wheaton, Md., 20906 (ph. 301-933-5417; call only on Mon. or Thurs. between 8 & 10 p.m.); for DHG, Terry Kuch, 1242 E-W Hgwy, Chevy Chase, Md., 20015 (301-OL6-5845; call p-t-p if L.Dist.).

The House-Rules -- As published in DIPLOMANIA #18, with changes in DPBA #43; these are mandatory. See also voluntary "Golden Rules" published in DPBA #28 (or 29).

New Games -- In DIPLOPHOBIA: One Regular game (QAC) (Don Cowan & Bill Inman paid) (note slow-speed Regular game is cancelled); In HYDROPHOBIA: One game of Scotice Scioti (FNI) (ancient Ireland, Wales, Scotland, etc.) (Bill Linden paid; Margaret, you paid \$2, so still owe \$1). In AUX ARMES!: Summer replacement player needed for ARABIA (Minor Neutral; no fee); also, positions always open for "off-board" players (fee, \$1) (game: the "monster", Hypereconomic Dippy); also, stand-by replacement players badly needed for DIPLOPHOBIA, AUX ARMES!, and HYDROPHOBIA. ##### Fees for DPBA or HPBA: \$5 (\$4 if in game in 'zine or G.B. Regular member (\$1 per year from Don Miller); \$3 if both). Payable at time of application.

Miscellaneous -- Sorry thish is so late -- mainly eye inflammation which kept us away from typer for better part of two months. AUX ARMES! #5 and DIPLOMANIA #24 out in week to ten days. ##### DIPLOPHOBIA, HYDROPHOBIA each 15¢ ea., 10/\$1.25 (.12 ea., 10/\$1.10 to G.B. Regular members); AUX ARMES! 15¢ ea., 10/\$1.35 (.13 & 10/\$1.20); DIPLOMANIA .35 ea., 4/\$1.25 (.30 & 4/\$1.10); all but DPMA free to players in games therein. ##### For address code, see HPBA #6; for back-issue info, write D.Miller. --DLM

DIPLOMANIA
D.Miller
12315 Judson Rd.
Wheaton, Md., 20906

TO: Charles Wells (W-54)
3021 Washington Blvd.
Cleveland, Ohio, 44117



FIRST CLASS MAIL